
 
 
 
 

 

Dedicated to protecting and improving the health and environment of the people of Colorado 

Water Quality Control Division: Denver 
4300 Cherry Creek Drive S., Denver, CO  80246-1530  P 303-692-2000 www.colorado.gov/cdphe/wqcd 

John W. Hickenlooper, Governor | Larry Wolk, MD, MSPH, Executive Director and Chief Medical Officer 

October 25, 2016 

David Valdez 
Colorado City Metro District 
PO Box 20229 
Colorado City, CO 81019 

Subject: Sanitary Survey of Colorado City Metro District 
 Public Water System Identification No. CO0151200 

Pueblo County 

Dear Mr. Valdez: 

A sanitary survey was performed on September 28, 2016 by the Field Services Section of the Colorado 
Department of Public Health and Environment’s Water Quality Control Division (the Department) at Colorado 
City Metro District (the Supplier) in accordance with the Colorado Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 5 CCR 
1002-11 (Regulation 11), Sections 11.38(1)(b) and 11.38(2). This letter serves to provide the Supplier with 
written notification of the sanitary survey findings, including any identified significant deficiencies and 
violations of Regulation 11 and the Water And Wastewater Facility Operators Certification Requirements, CCR 
1003-2 (Regulation 100). The assistance that was provided during the sanitary survey was very helpful and is 
greatly appreciated. Table 1 identifies the parties present during the sanitary survey. 

Table 1: Parties Present 

Name Organization 
Gary Golladay Colorado City Metro District 
Tyson Ingels, P.E. Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

In response to this letter, the Supplier must provide a written response, documenting resolution of all 
significant deficiencies and violations, and/or propose a corrective action plan with a corrective action 
schedule, as required by Regulation 11, Section 11.38(3)(d,f). Also, for findings that are violations of Regulation 
11, the Supplier must comply with the public notification requirements described in Section VI, below. The 
Supplier’s written response is due within forty-five (45) days. If a corrective action plan is proposed, it must 
outline the course of action that has or will be taken and the date by which the Supplier proposes to correct 
each significant deficiency and violation of Regulation 11 and Regulation 100. Table 2 summarizes the number 
of findings and the required written response and resolution dates. 

Table 2: Sanitary Survey Findings 

Severity Category Number 
Identified 

Written Response Due 
(within 45 days of letter date) 

Resolution Due 
(within 120 days of letter, 
or Department-approved 
alternate date) 

Public Notice 
Required 
(Violations of 
Regulations 11 or 100) 

Significant Deficiencies 9 December 9, 2016 February 22, 2017 Not Required 

Significant Deficiencies 
- also Regulation 11 
violation 

2 December 9, 2016 February 22, 2017 Required 

Other Violations 7 December 9, 2016 February 22, 2017 Required 

Observations -
Recommendations 1 No response required Not applicable Not applicable 
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Failure to adequately address all significant deficiencies and violations referenced above may result in 
additional violations of Regulation 11 and/or Regulation 100. A list of the findings for each category in Table 2 
can be found in the following sections:  

Section I: Significant Deficiencies  

According to Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71), a significant deficiency means: 

any situation, practice, or condition in a public water system with respect to design, operation, 
maintenance, or administration, that the state determines may result in or have the potential to 
result in production of finished drinking water that poses an unacceptable risk to health and welfare 
of the public served by the water system.  

The items in this category are significant deficiencies. Please direct questions regarding resolution of the 
following items to the Department inspector. 

1. F310 - Finished Water Storage: Tank No 4 250k (SDWIS ID: 008) 
Storage Condition: The condition of the storage structure may allow potential sources of contamination to 
enter the tank. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier had contracted for 
professional tank inspections in 2014. As a result, there were several sanitary defects identified at each tank. 
The tank inspection identified defects with the vent and no gasket on the tank hatch. These conditions could 
allow the entrance of contaminants such as insects, birds and small animals into the tank. Maintaining a tank in 
a manner that may allow for potential contamination of potable water presents a risk to public health which 
meets the definition of a significant deficiency as defined in Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71) and must be 
corrected. In accordance with Section 7.0.3 of the Colorado Design Criteria for Potable Water Systems, the 
Supplier must correct these defects by installing the appropriate gaskets and ensuring that the tank vent is 
covered with a 24-mesh screen. Please submit photographic evidence of the correction(s) to the Department 
inspector upon completion. 

2. F310 - Finished Water Storage: Tank No 3 3MG (SDWIS ID: 007) 
Storage Condition: The condition of the storage structure may allow potential sources of contamination to 
enter the tank. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the previous tank inspection 
indicated sanitary defects. The tank inspection identified defects with the vent and no gasket on the tank 
hatch. These conditions could allow the entrance of contaminants such as insects, birds and small animals into 
the tank. Maintaining a tank in a manner that may allow for potential contamination of potable water presents 
a risk to public health which meets the definition of a significant deficiency as defined in Regulation 11, 
Section 11.3(71) and must be corrected. In accordance with Section 7.0.3 of the Colorado Design Criteria for 
Potable Water Systems, the Supplier must correct these defects by installing the appropriate gaskets and 
ensuring that the tank vent is covered with a 24-mesh screen. Please submit photographic evidence of the 
correction(s) to the Department inspector upon completion. 

3. F310 - Finished Water Storage: Tank No 2 250k (SDWIS ID: 006) 
Storage Condition: The condition of the storage structure may allow potential sources of contamination to 
enter the tank. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the previous tank inspection 
indicated sanitary defects. The tank inspection identified defects with the vent and no gasket on the tank 
hatch. In addition, the overflow of this tank was unprotected. See photo in Figure 1. These conditions could 
allow the entrance of contaminants such as insects, birds and small animals into the tank. Maintaining a tank in 
a manner that may allow for potential contamination of potable water presents a risk to public health which 
meets the definition of a significant deficiency as defined in Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71) and must be 
corrected. In accordance with Section 7.0.3 of the Colorado Design Criteria for Potable Water Systems, the 
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Supplier must correct these defects by installing the appropriate gaskets, ensuring that the tank vent is 
covered with a 24-mesh screen and installing a flap valve or 24-mesh screen over the overflow outlet opening. 
Please submit photographic evidence of the correction(s) to the Department inspector upon completion. 

4. F310 - Finished Water Storage: Tank No 1 250k (SDWIS ID: 005) 
Storage Condition: The condition of the storage structure may allow potential sources of contamination to 
enter the tank. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the previous tank inspection 
indicated sanitary defects. The tank inspection identified defects with the vent and no gasket on the tank 
hatch. In addition, the overflow of this tank was unprotected. See photo in Figure 1. These conditions could 
allow the entrance of contaminants such as insects, birds and small animals into the tank. Maintaining a tank in 
a manner that may allow for potential contamination of potable water presents a risk to public health which 
meets the definition of a significant deficiency as defined in Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71) and must be 
corrected. In accordance with Section 7.0.3 of the Colorado Design Criteria for Potable Water Systems, the 
Supplier must correct these defects by installing the appropriate gaskets, ensuring that the tank vent is 
covered with a 24-mesh screen and installing a flap valve or 24-mesh screen over the overflow outlet opening. 
Please submit photographic evidence of the correction(s) to the Department inspector upon completion. 

5. T119 - Treatment: Water Treatment Plant for Cold Springs (SDWIS ID: 002) 
Proper Operation: Ground water under the direct influence (GWUDI) of surface water treatment operational 
practices. Regulation 11, Section 11.8(1)(b) and CDPHE-WQCD Policy 4. 

During the sanitary survey, the Department inspector discussed the GWUDI treatment process with the 
Supplier’s certified operator. The treatment and disinfection processes consist of ultrafiltration and 
disinfection. Part of the ultrafiltration step includes periodic chemical clean in place (CIP). At the time of the 
inspection, the Supplier did not maintain a written protocol on-site for the chemical CIP process. Regulation 
11, Section 11.8(1)(b) requires, “at a point between where the source water is not subject to recontamination 
and the entry point, the Supplier must install and properly operate water treatment processes that reliably 
achieve at least the following levels of treatment: (I) 99 percent (2-log) removal of Cryptosporidium, (II) 99.9 
percent (3-log) treatment, including filtration and disinfection, of Giardia lamblia,(III) 99.99 percent (4-log) 
treatment, including filtration and disinfection, of viruses.”  

Failing to have a clearly document protocol for CIP and a log certifying that the CIP has been performed on a 
regular basis does not meet the operational and maintenance criteria outlined in the Department’s May 23, 
2014 acceptance of the Zenon ZeeWeed 500 module as an Alternative Filtration Technology. This issue 
constitutes significant deficiency and must be corrected. The Department expects the Supplier to develop a 
written protocol for the CIP process and implement the CIP process. The Supplier must also develop a log to 
certify that the CIP has been performed in accordance with the protocol. These logs must be available for the 
Department’s review upon request. At a minimum, please develop the protocol for CIP and perform a CIP. Then, 
please submit the protocol and first log to the Department for review and resolution of this deficiency. 

6. T901 - Treatment: Surface Water Treatment Plant (SDWIS ID: 001) 
Cross Connection: Uncontrolled cross connection that may allow contamination to enter drinking water. 

In accordance with Section 11.39(3)(b) of Regulation 11, suppliers of water are prohibited from installing or 
permitting any uncontrolled cross connections to the distribution system or within a supplier’s waterworks. 
Unprotected cross connections present potential sanitary hazards and health risks which meet the definition of 
a significant deficiency as defined in Section 11.3(71) of Regulation 11 and must be corrected. At the time of 
the sanitary survey, the Department inspector identified a cross connection from the block and bleed assembly 
on the membrane skid to the waste channel. The hose from the block and bleed assembly was placed directly 
into the waste pipe and a gap for the bleed line was not visible. Therefore, during CIP events, the operator 
could not verify that the block and bleed assembly is working properly.  

In accordance with Section 11.39 of Regulation 11, the Supplier must control or remove this cross connection to 
prevent the potential backflow of the identified contaminant from entering the distribution system. In order to 
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correct this deficiency, the Supplier must install an air gap on the block hose waste line and the operator must 
observe this air gap during CIP. Please update the plant’s protocol for CIP to include visual verification of this 
air gap. In order to resolve this significant deficiency, please provide a photograph and an updated CIP protocol 
to the Department’s inspector.  

7. T161 - Treatment: Surface Water Treatment Plant (SDWIS ID: 001) 
Secondary Containment: Chemical storage existed without secondary containment or appropriate measures to 
mitigate risks to operators or finished water. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier was storing CIP 
chemicals with no secondary containment. Storing CIP chemicals with no secondary containment could cause 
significant damage if a large spill occurs that could prevent the water plant from producing safe, potable 
water. This condition meets the definition of a significant deficiency (Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71)) and must 
be corrected. The Supplier must install a secondary containment basin for the sodium hypochlorite container 
and other chemical containers. Upon completing the correction, please submit a photograph of the secondary 
containment to the Department inspector. A photograph of the chemical storage is shown in Figure 2.  

8. T160 - Treatment: Surface Water Treatment Plant (SDWIS ID: 001) 
Chemical Safety: Treatment chemical facility safety features appeared inadequate. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier’s sodium hypochlorite 
container was located immediately adjacent to noncompatible chemicals. Allowing chemical storage next to 
incompatible chemicals could result in an unacceptable safety hazard and could prevent the water plant from 
producing safe, potable water. In addition to the significant deficiency described directly above about 
secondary containment at the facility, the Department inspector observed that there were no written standard 
operating protocols for handing the large (55 gallon) containers of citric acid, caustic soda and sodium 
hypochlorite. Given the explosive nature of these chemicals should an accidental spill occur and unintended 
mixing occurs, the Department would recommend storing the chemicals in isolated areas. At a minimum, the 
Supplier must provide a written standard operating protocol for chemical handling to ensure chemical safety at 
the water treatment plant.  

9. T119 - Treatment: Surface Water Treatment Plant (SDWIS ID: 001) 
Proper Operation: Surface water or GWUDI of surface water treatment operational practices. Regulation 11, 
Section 11.8(1)(b) and CDPHE-WQCD Policy 4. 

During the sanitary survey, the Department inspector discussed the surface water/GWUDI treatment process 
with the Supplier’s certified operator. The treatment and disinfection processes consist of microfiltration and 
chemical disinfection. During the sanitary survey, the Department inspector checked whether the Supplier was 
properly performing integrity testing at least once per week. While the SCADA system indicated that integrity 
testing was being performed, the plant operators were not verifying that the integrity testing was being 
performed at least once per week. Failing to ensure that the membrane system is properly recording integrity 
testing constitutes a significant deficiency. In order to resolve the deficiency, the Supplier must verify that 
integrity tests are being performed weekly.  

Additionally at the water plant, the Department inspector noted that the compliance turbidimeter had a 30 
gallon tank prior to the instrument. Given a flow of approximately 100 milliliters per minute, there would be 
approximately 21 hours of residence time in the 30 gallon tank. It is the Department inspector’s understanding 
that the 30 gallon tank was placed prior to the turbidimeter in order to trap air bubbles that get purged from 
the membranes and can affect the online instrumentation. While pertinent for the air bubbles, the tank 
impedes the monitoring of representative turbidity from the membrane treatment system. The Department 
expects the Supplier to modify the turbidimeter capture system to ensure that the combined filter effluent 
turbidity is being measured in a representative manner with minimal detention time.  
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Section II: Significant Deficiencies that are Violations of Regulation 11 

The items in this category are significant deficiencies that are also violations of Regulation 11. Please direct 
questions regarding resolution of the following items to the Department inspector. 

1. T124 - Treatment: Water Treatment Plant for Cold Springs (SDWIS ID: 002) 
Membrane Filtration Integrity Testing (T2): Supplier lacked or was not properly performing membrane integrity 
tests. This is a violation of Regulation 11, Section 11.8(2)(b)(ii)(A). 

During the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the filtration treatment processes consisted 
of Zenon ZeeWeed 500 modules. The Supplier’s certified operator in responsible charge stated that it was 
unclear when the last integrity tests were performed. The frequency of membrane integrity testing is required 
to be once per calendar week that the membrane is in operation and following CIP, as required by Section 
4.3.8.7(d) of the Colorado Design Criteria for Potable Water Systems and referenced as a condition of approval 
in the Department’s May 23, 2014 acceptance of the Zenon ZeeWeed 500 module as an Alternative Filtration 
Technology. The filtration system was not being operated in accordance with the conditions of acceptance 
outlined in the Department’s Acceptance of the Alternative Filtration Technology letter and is therefore not 
properly operated to ensure it is consistently achieving 99.9 percent removal of Giardia in accordance with 
Regulation 11, Section 11.8(2)(b)(ii)(A). Operating under such conditions constitutes a risk to public health 
which meets the definition of a significant deficiency as defined in Regulation 11, Section 11.3(71) and is a 
violation of Regulation 11, Section 11.8(2)(b)(ii)(A). This violation must be corrected. To address this significant 
violation, the Department expects the Supplier to modify operational procedures to ensure that the alternative 
filtration technology is being integrity tested at the frequency required. The Supplier is expected to submit to 
the Department inspector a written integrity testing standard operating procedure and a test log to address 
this deficiency. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 2 public notice in accordance with Regulation 11, 
Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

2. R529 – Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Data Verification:  
Monitoring Turbidity (T3): Supplier was not properly monitoring and or recording turbidity values. This is a 
violation of Regulation 11, Section 11.8(1)(2). 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Supplier was monitoring turbidity at the Cold Springs WTP in a location 
downstream of the disinfection contact basin. Combined filter effluent turbidity must be measured as close as 
practice to the location where all individual filter skids combine. Monitoring for turbidity at locations that are 
not representative or do not meet the requirements for Combined Filter Effluent or Individual Filter Effluent 
sampling is a violation of Regulation 11.8(1). The Supplier is expected to monitor for turbidity at representative 
locations for combined filter effluent and individual filter effluent. To resolve this violation, the Supplier is 
expected to provide proof that monitoring points have been moved to the appropriate locations and the 
monitoring plan has been appropriately updated. In addition, at the time of the sanitary survey, the 
turbidimeter was not functioning while the plant was producing finished water. The Supplier is expected to get 
the turbidimeter repaired as quickly as possible. In the future, if the online turbidimeter is broken, the 
Department expects the Supplier to notify the Department within 48 hours and take grab sample turbidity at 
the appropriate interval. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with 
Regulation 11, Section 11.33 as directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

Section III: Other Violations 

Other violations of Regulation 11 or Regulation 100 that do not meet the definition of a significant deficiency 
are listed below. Please direct questions regarding resolution of the following items to Tim Jones at 303-692-
2085 or timothy.jones@state.co.us. 

1. F330 - Management:  
Storage Tank Inspection Plan (T3): Supplier has not developed or maintained a storage tank inspection plan. 
This is a violation of Regulation 11, Section 11.28(4)(a). 

mailto:timothy.jones@state.co.us
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In accordance with Section 11.28(2) of Regulation 11, suppliers of water are required to develop and maintain a 
written inspection plan for finished water storage tanks. At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department 
inspector found that the Supplier had not developed a written plan for storage tank inspections. The storage 
tank inspection plan must include accurately documenting tank inventory, as well as, the schedule for 
performing storage tank inspections. Periodic inspections are required at least quarterly and comprehensive 
inspections are required every five years. For more information, please visit the Department's website at 
http://wqcdcompliance.com. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with 
Regulation 11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section 
below. 

2. F318 - Management:  
Required Inspections Not Performed (T2): Supplier has not performed the required inspections. This is a 
violation of Regulation 11, Section 11.28(4)(b)(ii). 

In accordance with Section 11.28(2) of Regulation 11, suppliers of water are required to develop and maintain a 
written inspection plan for finished water storage tanks. The Supplier must perform periodic and 
comprehensive inspections of each finished water storage tank per Section 11.28(3)(c). At the time of the 
sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier had not performed periodic inspections of 
the finished water storage tank(s) at the required intervals. Failing to perform the required inspections 
constitutes a treatment technique violation of Regulation 11. The Supplier must perform and keep record of 
comprehensive and periodic inspections of all finished water storage tanks. This violation of Regulation 11 
requires Tier 2 public notice in accordance with Regulation 11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as 
directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

3. R532 – Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Data Verification:  
Turbidimeter Monitoring Equipment Calibration (T3): Supplier did not maintain calibration logs, was not 
calibrating, verifying or operating turbidity monitoring analytical equipment in accordance with manufacturer 
requirements. This is a violation of the Regulation 11, Section 11.46. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier could not provide 
documentation demonstrating that the turbidimeters had been calibrated in accordance with 40 CFR 141.74(a) 
and the manufacturer’s recommendations, which is quarterly for HACH turbidimeters. In accordance with 
Section 11.46 of Regulation 11, the Department expects that turbidimeters be calibrated quarterly as 
recommended by the manufacturer using primary turbidity calibration standards that have not expired. To 
ensure that the Supplier properly documents calibration records for all of the Supplier’s analytical equipment, 
the Supplier should develop and implement written procedures and calibration logs. This violation of Regulation 
11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with Regulation 11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as 
directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

4. R531 – Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Data Verification:  
Disinfectant Monitoring Equipment Verification (T3): Supplier did not maintain verification logs, was not 
verifying or operating disinfectant monitoring analytical equipment in accordance with manufacturer 
requirements. This is a violation of the Regulation 11, Section 11.46. 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier could not provide 
documentation demonstrating that the disinfectant monitoring equipment had been verified in accordance with 
40 CFR 141.74(a) and the manufacturer’s recommendations. In accordance with Section 11.46 of Regulation 11, 
the Department expects the Supplier to calibrate or check their online chlorine analyzers per manufacturer’s 
recommendations or at least once weekly. During the inspection, the online chlorine analyzer measured 1.8 
milligrams per liter while the handheld colorimetric analyzer indicated a 1.15 milligrams per liter chlorine 
residual. If an online analyzer is overestimating the chlorine residual, it is possible that public health is not 
being adequately protected. The online chlorine analyzers should be checked with secondary standards and the 
results recorded in a logbook to indicate any issues with the instruments. The Department also expects the 
Supplier to calibrate or check their portable chlorine analyzers per manufacturer’s recommendations or at 
least once annually. To ensure that the Supplier properly documents calibration and verification records for all 

http://wqcdcompliance.com/
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of the Supplier’s analytical equipment, the Supplier should develop and implement written procedures and 
calibration logs. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with Regulation 11, 
Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

5. R520 – Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Data Verification:  
Record Keeping (T3): Supplier did not maintain records according to the minimum requirements specified in 
Regulation 11. This is a violation of Section 11.36(3)(b) of Regulation 11. 

During the recordkeeping review of the Supplier’s water system, the Department inspector found that the 
records were incomplete. At the time of the sanitary survey, the Supplier was unable to locate the monitoring 
plan or turbidity records. This is a violation of Section 11.36 of Regulation 11. The Supplier is required to keep 
records as specified in Section 11.36 and it is recommended that the Supplier develop a record management 
system and a records retention policy to allow all records to be adequately maintained on-site and available for 
review by the Department. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with 
Regulation 11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section 
below. 

6. R510 – Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Data Verification:  
General Monitoring Plan (T3): Supplier lacked a monitoring plan, the plan did not include the required content, 
the plan had not been updated for facility changes or the plan had not been submitted. This is a violation of 
Regulation 11, Section 11.5. 

According to Section 11.5 of Regulation 11, all suppliers of water shall develop and implement a monitoring 
plan. At the time of the sanitary survey, the Department inspector observed that the Supplier did not have a 
monitoring plan. Subsequent to the sanitary survey, the Supplier emailed an out of date copy of the monitoring 
plan to the Department inspector. The Supplier must update and finish developing a monitoring plan that 
includes all the requirements of Section 11.5. In order to aid in the development of the plan, the Department 
recommends that the Supplier use the Department’s monitoring plan template, which can be accessed from 
http://wqcdcompliance.com. If the Supplier would like help developing the plan, please request coaching 
assistance via the Department’s Local Assistance Unit website at 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/cdphe/drinking-water-training-opportunities, which has an online coaching 
request link. After developing the monitoring plan, the Supplier is required to submit a copy to the Department 
via the Department’s online portal, which can be accessed at https://wqcdcompliance.com/login. The Supplier 
is required to create a portal account, if not done previously. The portal can be used for uploading non-
emergency information for suppliers of water in addition to monitoring plans. For portal support, please 
contact: 

· Kaleb Winisko at kaleb.winisko@state.co.us or 303-691-7803 

· Whitney Walker at whitney.walker@state.co.us or 303-691-7809 

Once submitted to the Department, the plan will be reviewed by the Department’s Drinking Water Compliance 
Assurance Section. This violation of Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with Regulation 
11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section below. 

7. M610 - Management:  
Backflow Prevention and Cross-Connection Control Program (T3): Supplier has failed to develop or implement a 
written backflow prevention and cross-connection control program. This is a violation of Regulation 11, Section 
11.39(2)(a). 

At the time of the sanitary survey, the Supplier could not demonstrate compliance with Section 11.39(2)(a) of 
Regulation 11, Backflow Prevention and Cross-Connection Control Program Requirements. The Department 
inspector found that the Supplier did not have a written backflow prevention and cross-connection control 
program as specified under Section 11.39(2)(a). This is a violation of Regulation 11.39(3)(b), the Backflow 
Prevention and Cross-Connection Control Rule. Uncontrolled cross connections have the potential to cause 
severe health risks to consumers in the water distribution system. Section 11.39 requires suppliers of water to 

http://wqcdcompliance.com/
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/cdphe/drinking-water-training-opportunities
https://wqcdcompliance.com/login
mailto:kaleb.winisko@state.co.us
mailto:whitney.walker@state.co.us
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identify potential service cross connections, requires the installation of containment devices on cross 
connections and requires the Supplier to ensure that the containment devices are tested annually by a trained 
cross-connection control technician. These cross-connection control measures, including a system survey, must 
be implemented. Suppliers of water are required create an annual cross-connection control report due May 1 of 
the following calendar year and to maintain cross-connection control records for a minimum period of three 
years. Additional information on cross-connection control is available on the Department’s website at: 
https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/cdphe/drinking-water-cross-connection-control-program. This violation of 
Regulation 11 requires Tier 3 public notice in accordance with Regulation 11, Section 11.33 (Public Notification 
Rule) as directed in the public notice instructions section below. For questions concerning public notice 
requirements, the Supplier may contact Tim Jones of the Compliance Assurance Section at 303-692-2085 or at 
timothy.jones@state.co.us. 

Section IV: Observations/Recommendations 

The Department recommends the Supplier follow up and consider the following observations-recommendations. 
Please direct questions regarding any of the items below to the Department inspector. 

1. S012 - Source: Cold Spring (SDWIS ID: 004) 
Groundwater Source Potential GWUDI: Supplier’s source is considered to be under the direct influence of 
surface water as defined by Regulation 11, Section 11.3(36). 

The Supplier indicated that they would be interested in gathering data to confirm the GWUDI classification. 
The Department will evaluate the source for determination of GWUDI of surface water should the Supplier 
decide to collect additional data. For additional information, please contact Bryan Pickle of the Compliance 
Assurance Section to discuss specific data collection and specific sampling times. Bryan can be reached at 
bryan.pickle@state.co.us or 303-692-3527.  

Section V: Field Verification/Sampling 

While performing the sanitary survey, the inspector verified operator certification requirements and performed 
water quality sampling for chlorine. Table 3 indicates the operator certification verification for Colorado City 
Metro District. Table 4 indicates the results of the water quality sampling performed on-site. 

Table 3: Operator Certification Verification 

Category Required Certification 
Level 

Name of Operator in 
Responsible Charge 

Certification Level Held 
and No. 

Treatment B Gary Golladay A4 - 11033 
Distribution 1 Gary Golladay A4 - 11033 

Table 4: Sampling Results 

Parameter Sample Location Value Units Notes 
Disinfectant Residual Entry Point Sample Tap 1.15 mg/L At Cold Springs Water Treatment Plant 
Disinfectant Residual District offices 0.69 mg/L  

Section VI: Public Notification Instructions for Violations 

The public notice requirements are dependent upon the severity of the violation and any potential public 
health effects, pursuant to Regulation 11, Sections 11.33(1)(a,b), 11.33(2)(a), 11.33(3)(a) and 11.33(4)(a). All 
issued notifications must comply with the general content and distribution requirements and notice reporting 
requirements that are included in Regulation 11, Sections 11.33(5) and (6) and 11.33(7). Please be advised of 
the following: 

1. For all violations that require Tier 2 public notice, the Supplier must distribute the public notice as 
soon as possible but no later than November 24, 2016 to all of the Supplier’s consumers. 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/cdphe/drinking-water-cross-connection-control-program
mailto:timothy.jones@state.co.us
mailto:bryan.pickle@state.co.us
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2. For all violations that require Tier 3 public notice, the Supplier must distribute the public notice as 
soon as possible but no later than October 25, 2017 to all of the Supplier’s consumers. 

3. The public notice and certification template is provided at https://wqcdcompliance.com/forms under 
Public Notification.  

4. No later than 10 calendar days after completing the initial and repeat public notice (if applicable), the 
Supplier must submit a certification that states the Supplier has fully complied with the public notice 
requirements. The Supplier must include a representative copy of each distributed notice to the 
Department. 

5. The Supplier’s public notice and the certification form must be submitted to the Department 
electronically through the drinking water portal at https://wqcdcompliance.com/login, by mail or by 
fax at 303-758-1398 (attention to Tim Jones). 

Please direct questions regarding the public notice requirements directly to Tim Jones at 303-692-2085 or 
timothy.jones@state.co.us. 

Reminders 

• Regulation 11, Section 11.4(1)(b) (Prior Approval Required) requires the Department’s approval prior to 
commencement of construction of any improvements, treatment process modifications or the addition 
of new water sources.  

• Most regulations, guidance documents and forms are available on the Department’s website at 
http://wqcdcompliance.com.  

Attached is a form that the Supplier may use to document the required written response to this letter. While 
using this form is optional, it will fulfill the requirement to provide a written response if completed and 
submitted to the Department by the written response due date listed above.  

Enclosed with this letter you will find a postage-paid Customer Satisfaction Survey Postcard. Please take a few 
moments to complete the survey and return it to the Department. Your efforts to provide feedback to improve 
the sanitary survey process are appreciated. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 303-692-3002 or tyson.ingels@state.co.us. Thank you for your 
time and cooperation. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Tyson Ingels, P.E. 
Lead Drinking Water Engineer 
Field Services Section 
Water Quality Control Division 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

cc: Pueblo County 
Drinking Water File, PWSID No. CO0151200 (FS.16.INSP.02911) 
Gary Golladay 

 Bret Icenogle, Engineering Section Manager, CDPHE-WQCD-Engineering Section 
Margaret Talbott, Compliance Unit Manager, CDPHE-WQCD-Compliance Assurance Section 
Paul Hanson, Field Services Section 

https://wqcdcompliance.com/forms
https://wqcdcompliance.com/login
mailto:timothy.jones@state.co.us
http://wqcdcompliance.com/
mailto:tyson.ingels@state.co.us
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Attachments 

  

Figure 1: Overflows at Tanks 1 and 2 – need to be protected from contamination. 

  

Figure 2: Unacceptable chemical storage area lacking secondary containment  
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